
 

 
Agenda compiled by: 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
 

 
Stuart Robinson 
 
Tel No: 0113 247 4360 

 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 
A 

 

 

 

SCHOOL ORGANISATION ADVISORY BOARD 
 

 
Meeting to be held in the Civic Hall, Leeds on 
Thursday, 13th September, 2012 at 1.00 pm 

 
 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
DIOCESAN BOARD OF EDUCATION FOR THE 
DIOCESE OF THE CHURCH OF ENGLAND 

 
Clive Sedgewick 

 
 

ROMAN CATHOLIC CHURCH DIOCESE 
 

Trina Hagerty 
 
 

SCHOOLS GROUP 
 

Danny Kenny – Headteacher 
Ian Garforth – Chair of Governors 

Vacancy 
 
 

FURTHER/HIGHER EDUCATION ESTABLISHMENT GROUP 
 

Jane Taylor 
 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

 
 

SCHOOL ORGANISATION ADVISORY BOARD (LEEDS) 
 
 

PURPOSE OF THE BOARD 
 
 
 
Leeds City Council as the Local Authority has responsibility to make decisions in relation 
to certain school organisation statutory proposals. 
 
At the request of the Authority the School Organisation Advisory Board, made up of 
representatives from the area’s education community, has been set up in order to 
consider and make recommendations to the Authority in relation to school organisation 
proposals:- 
 

• Where objections have been submitted 

• As otherwise requested by the Authority 
 
 
In making recommendations the Board will have regard to relevant statues. Statutory 
Regulations and Guidance 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

C 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  ELECTION OF CHAIR/VICE CHAIR 
 
To elect a Chair/Vice Chair. 
 

 

2   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

3   
 

  DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 
To note any declarations of interest. 
 

 

4   
 

  SCHOOL ORGANISATION ADVISORY BOARD 
(LEEDS) -  TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
To note that the attached terms of reference for the 
Board have been slightly amended. 
 
The amendments are:- 

• to remove as a member the Learning and 
Skills Council; 

• to amend para 3. 4 which deals with 
declarations of interest; and 

• to alter the quorum for meetings increasing 
it from 1 group to 2 groups 

 

1 - 6 

5   
 

  REPORT ON SCHOOL COMPETITION 
PROCESS FOR NEW SCHOOLS IN HAREHILLS 
AND SOUTH LEEDS 
 
To consider a report of the Legal Adviser to the 
Board explaining the role of the Board in 
considering the school competition bids and 
making recommendations to the Executive Board 
to assist the Executive Board in reaching a 
decision in relation to the new school proposals. 
 

7 - 8 

6   
 

  FUTURE BUSINESS 
 
To identify future business for the Advisory Board. 
 
 
 

 



 

 
D 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

7     DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 

 

 



G:EEGL/Deputy Section Head/School Organisation and Advisory Board/Terms of reference 
 

 
 

SCHOOL ORGANISATION ADVISORY BOARD (LEEDS) 
 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

1. PURPOSE OF THE BOARD 
 
1.1 Leeds City Council as the Local Authority has responsibility to make decisions 

in relation to certain school organisation statutory proposals. 
 
1.2 At the request of the Authority the School Organisation Advisory Board, made 

up of representatives from the area’s education community, has been set up 
in order to consider and make recommendations to the Authority in relation to 
school organisation proposals:- 

 

• where objections have been submitted   

• as otherwise requested by the Authority 
 
1.3 In making recommendations the Board will have regard to relevant statutes, 

Statutory Regulations and Guidance. 
 
2. ORGANISATION 
 

2.1 Chair and Vice Chair 
 

The Board shall elect a Chair and Vice Chair at: 
 

- Its first meeting. 
- The next meeting which falls after the date which is a year after the 

meeting at which the Chair or Vice Chair was elected. 
 

The Chair and Vice Chair will be elected by a majority decision of individual 
members of the Board voting. 

 
On ceasing to hold office the Chair and Vice Chair will be eligible for re-
election. 

 
In the event of a casual vacancy occurring in the office of Chair or Vice Chair, 
the Board shall at its next meeting elect one of their members to fill that 
vacancy and a member so elected shall hold office until the date of the 
meeting at which the Chair or Vice Chair would have held office had the 
casual vacancy not occurred. 

 
A Chair or Vice Chair shall cease to hold office: 

 
a) If he resigns his office by written notice given to the Clerk; or 
b) If he ceases to be a member of the Board. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



G:EEGL/Deputy Section Head/School Organisation and Advisory Board/Terms of reference 
 

 
The Chair and Vice Chair should not be drawn from the same group. 

 
When a vote is required the Chair and Vice Chair must each vote with their 
own group. 

 
2.2 Clerk to the Board 

 
A Council officer shall act as Clerk to the Board. Legal advice will be provided 
to the Board as required  

 
The Clerk shall: 
 

• keep a record of each meeting 

• deal with any administration connected with the Board including 
sending recommendations to the Authority.  

 
2.3 Indemnification 

 
The Authority shall indemnify members of the Board against reasonable legal 
costs and expenses arising from their involvement with the Board. 
 

3. MEMBERSHIP 
 

3.1 Groups of Members of the Board 
 

The Board shall consist of the following groups: 
 

 
a) Diocesan Board of Education for the Diocese of the Church of England 

which comprises the area of the Authority (1 member). 
 

b) The Roman Catholic Church Diocese which comprises the area of the 
Authority (1 member). 

 
c) Schools Group. (3 members: 1 head teacher nominated by the Head 

teacher’s Forum and 2 governors nominated by the Governor’s Forum, 
who shall not be Local Authority governors and at least one parent 
governor who shall not be a Local Authority Member) 
 

d) Further/Higher Education establishments Group (1 member). 
 

3.2 Tenure of Members 
 

Persons appointed to be members of the Board shall hold and vacate office in 
accordance with their terms of appointment.  

 

Page 2



G:EEGL/Deputy Section Head/School Organisation and Advisory Board/Terms of reference 
 

The term of office for members of the Board will be a maximum of three years, 
subject to their remaining eligible.  

 
Members may be appointed by a group to serve consecutive terms of office. 

 
A member may resign his membership at any time by giving written notice to 
the Clerk. 

 
A Member shall vacate his office:- 

 
a)  Where the person is a member of the Schools Group if he ceases to 

be either a head teacher or governor. 
 
b) In other cases where the body who nominated the member informs the 

Clerk that the person shall no longer be a member of the Board. 
 

3.3 Alternate Members  
 

A member of the Board may nominate an alternate member to attend 
meetings of the Board in his absence.  It should be noted that:- 
 
The alternate member must fulfil the qualification for membership of the group 
represented. 

 
A member of the Schools Group may only nominate an alternate member who 
is himself a head teacher or governor/ parent governor  

 
3.4 Declaration of Interests 

 
Members of the Board shall declare an interest in any individual proposal 
which directly affects the school at which they are a governor or at which their 
children attend or in which they might have a pecuniary interest in the 
recommendation made. They should withdraw from the discussion and take 
no part in making the recommendation. Where it is clear that a proposal in 
which a member of the Board has such an interest is likely to arise at a 
particular meeting, the member concerned may wish to invite an alternate to 
attend that meeting. 
 
 
Members of the Board who have objected to any proposal under 
consideration by the Board or have any affiliation to any proposal under 
consideration by the Board may take part in the discussion but cannot vote on 
the proposal 

 
3.5 Disqualification  

 
Any member who fails to attend three consecutive meetings of the Board 
where voting is required on a matter, even where an alternate attends on his 

Page 3



G:EEGL/Deputy Section Head/School Organisation and Advisory Board/Terms of reference 
 

or her behalf, should resign. Where members are unable to attend through 
sickness an exception will be made, unless they are absent through illness for 
a period of more than six months. 

 
4. MEETINGS 
 

4.1 Venues and Times of Meetings 
 

The Clerk will convene meetings of the Board, giving a minimum of 5 working 
days notice in advance of meetings. 
 
 

4.2 Proceedings 
 

Meetings of the Board shall be open to the public, except in such limited 
circumstances as agreed by the Board, where to do so might prejudice 
discussion. 

 
All recommendations made by the Board shall be made in public. 

 
 

4.3 Representatives 
 

The Board will have sight of written representations received in relation to 
statutory proposals being considered.  If objectors wish to make verbal 
representations to the Board then the usual practice would be for those who 
wish to speak to contact the clerk in advance of a Board meeting and at the 
meeting for the Board to hear from:- 
 
- The Proposer (no more than 5 minutes) 
- The Objectors (no more than 5 minutes in total) 
-           One ward Member of the ward in which the school is located (no     
more than 5 minutes in total) 
 
before making their recommendations 
 

4.4 Quorum 
 

The quorum for any meeting of the Board at which proposals are voted on 
shall be  at least two groups entitled to vote.  

 
4.5 Minutes of the Meeting 

 
The minutes of the meeting, once approved by the Chair or Vice Chair, may 
be available for public inspection. 

 
5. REACHING DECISIONS 
 

Page 4



G:EEGL/Deputy Section Head/School Organisation and Advisory Board/Terms of reference 
 

5.1 Voting Arrangements 
 

Recommendations on school organisation proposals shall be reached by a 
majority vote from those groups present casting a vote at a meeting.  
 
Each group shall have a single vote. 
 
Each individual group should reach the decision on how it will vote by a 
majority vote within the group. If there is no majority vote then the group shall 
abstain from voting.  A group may also decide to abstain from voting on a 
particular issue. 
 
Abstention does not constitute a vote against a proposal.  
 
Groups will be asked to give reasons for their decisions when voting. 

 
5.2 Public statements 

 
Public statements on behalf of the Board can only be made by the Chair or 
Vice Chair and with the prior approval of the Board.  Where that is not 
possible for reasons of time or expediency any such actions taken by the 
Chair or Vice Chair shall be reported to the next meeting of the Board. 

 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Report of the School Organisation Advisory Board 
 
 
Date:  6 September 2012  
 
Subject:  Report on School competition process for new schools in Harehills and 
South Leeds 
 

        
  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

1.0    Purpose of This Report 
 
  To explain to the Board the role of the Board in considering the school competition 
bids and making recommendations to the Executive Board to assist the Executive 
Board in reaching a decision in relation to the new schools proposals. 

 
 
2.0 Background Information 

 
Public consultation took place in September and October 2011 on the need for new 
primary schools at Florence Street in Harehills and the site of the former South Leeds 
Sports Centre. The Executive Board agreed to proceed with competitions for new 
schools in January 2012.  This entailed publishing two statutory notices, one inviting 
interested parties to submit bids to run the schools, and the second publishing details 
of the bids and inviting comments. The second notice expired on 20 August 2012. 
 
There were 7 responses to the summary of bids notice for Harehills, including 1 
petition with 60 signatures. The preferred bids were 1 for Leeds Muslim College, 2 for 
LEAF, 3 for Co-op, 1 for Academies Enterprise Trust.  

 
There are 114 responses to the summary of bids for South Leeds. All supported the 
Learning Trust South Leeds.  

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap  
 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

N/A 

Originator: Anne Oldroyd 
Legal Advisor to SOAB 
Tel:  0113 3951927             
  

 

 

 

Delegated Executive 
Function available 
for Call In 

 

Council 
Function 

Delegated Executive 
Function not available for 
Call In Details set out in the 
report 

   

                Ward Members consulted 
                (referred to in report) 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 7



 
These two proposals are now submitted to the Board to consider the proposals and to 
make recommendations to the Executive Board. 
 
Members of the Board will have the following documents to consider: 
 
Copies of the invitation to bid, bids received, and responses received are all available 
on: 

 
http://www.thefamilyhubleeds.org/content.aspx?ref=HTMLFiles/educationinleeds/harehillsconsultation.html 
 
http://www.thefamilyhubleeds.org/content.aspx?ref=HTMLFiles/educationinleeds/southleedsconsultation.html 
 

Due to the volume of information it is not intended to provide hard copies of the 
invitation to bid, the bids received and the responses. 

 
  Report from Children’s Services in relation to the school competition proposals (this 

will be sent separately). 
 
 
3.0 Recommendations 

 
The Board is asked to consider the proposals and to make recommendations with 
reasons for consideration by the Executive Board. 

 
 
 

Page 8


	Agenda
	4 School Organisation Advisory Board (Leeds) -  Terms of Reference
	5 Report on School competition process for new schools in Harehills and South Leeds

